
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

    May 03, 2016  9:00 am 
          Statesboro High School 

 
1. Call to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore 

 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Travis Chance 

 
3. Recognitions/Public Presentations  

A) Recognition of Police Officers who received annual awards during 2015 
B) Update on the current status of the Stormwater Management and Utility Program 
C) Presentation of Employee Years of Service Award 
D) Coastal Workforce Investment Board "Youth Summer Work Program" 

 
4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 

 
5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 04-19-2016 Council Minutes 
b) 04-19-2016 Executive Session Minutes 
c) 04-21-2016 Budget Retreat Minutes 

 
B) Consideration of a Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a Power Easement for 

construction, operation and maintenance with the Georgia Power Company for the 
City/County Training Tower. 
 

6. Consideration of a Motion to approve Special Event permit 
a) BVT Enterprises Inc - Semi-Professional Soccer Team 

 
7. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Georgia Emergency Management Agency/Homeland 

Security (GEMA/HA) Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement. 
 

8. Consideration of a Motion to award a "Sole Source" purchase to HD Supply Waterworks in the 
amount of $63,825.00 for Sensus water meters and transmitters to be paid from operating 
revenue. 
 

9. Consideration of a Motion to award a "Sole Source" 12 month Lease/Purchase Agreement to 
Burnett Lime Company for a total obligation of $201,820.00 for the delivery and installation of a 
Cal-Flo Lime Slurry System and a "Sole Source" purchase of Cal-Flo liquid lime at a cost of 
$0.059 per liquid pound delivered to Statesboro Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 
10. Consideration of a Motion to award a contract for Major Street Repairs in the amount of 

$85,000.00 to Ellis Wood Contracting. This project was budgeted under CIP number ENG-STS-
30. Submitted unit pricing will be utilized to bring the lowest submitted bid total of $97,660.00 to 
the recommended $85,000.00 contract total for this project. 
 

11. Consideration of a Motion to set the Public Hearing for the FY2017 Budget for Thursday June 9, 
2016 at 5:00 pm in the Council Chambers at City Hall. 



 
 

 
12. Consideration of a Motion to appoint a voting delegate for the 2016 GMA Annual 

Convention at the Westin in Savannah. 
 

13. Consideration of a Motion to appoint a flag bearer for the “Flag of Parades” at the GMA 
Annual Convention at the Westin in Savannah.  

 

14. Update on the City of Statesboro City Manager search 
 

15. Other Business from City Council 
 

16. City Managers Comments 
 

17. Public Comments (General) 
 

18. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 
April 19th , 2016 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on April 19th, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: Phil 
Boyum, Sam Lee Jones, Jeff Yawn and Travis Chance.  Also present were Deputy City Manager 
Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling, City Attorney Alvin Leaphart, Director of Public 
Works and Engineering Jason Boyles and Director of Planning and Development Mandi Cody. 
Councilman John Riggs was absent.    
The meeting was called to Order by Mayor Jan J. Moore 
 
Mayor Moore asked for a moment of silence in remembrance of Randy Attaway who pasted 
away earlier in the week. He was actively employed for 15 years with the City of Statesboro at 
the time of his death.  
 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was given by Allen Muldrew. 
 
Recognitions/Public Presentations 

A) Proclamation for “Manufacturing Appreciation Week”  
B) “America’s Best Community” presentation 

 
Mayor Moore presented Benji Thompson with a proclamation recognizing “Manufacturing 
Appreciation Week” 
 
“America’s Best” presentation was given by Bob Mikell, Phyllis Thompson and Mandi Cody.  
 
Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 04-05-2016 Council Minutes 
b) 04-05-2016 Executive Session Minutes 

B)   Consideration of a Motion to adopt Resolution 2016-19 : A Resolution accepting 
        the right of way of Pitcher Plant Way and Independence Way as public streets 
        to be owned and maintained by the City of Statesboro, Georgia. 
 

Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to approve the consent 
agenda in its entirety. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote.  
 
 



 
 

Consideration of a Motion to approve APPLICATION # RZ 16-03-01: William B. Morgan 
and Amy Morgan request a zoning map amendment for 1.38 acres of property located at 
23320 Highway 80 East from O (Office) zoning district to CR (Commercial Retail) zoning 
district in order to utilize the space for retail businesses (Tax Parcel # MS92 000095 000). 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
  
Bob Mikell spoke on behalf of the applicant as he outlined the plans for the property. 
  
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to close the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote.  
 
Councilman Chance stated he had been contacted by some residents on Boyd Lane who were 
against the request to change the zoning. The residents were not present. Councilman Chance 
made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to table the request until the next meeting. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote.  
                                                 
Consideration of a Motion to approve APPLICATION # SE 16-02-01: Brason Investments, 
LLC requests a Special Exception for .38 acres of property located at 101 Hawthorne Road 
to utilize the existing single-family residence as an office (Tax Parcel # MS74 000085 000). 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to open the public hearing. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote.  
 
Steve Rushing spoke in favor of the request on behalf of the applicant. Brian Davis spoke against 
the request stating it should remain residential. 
Councilman Boyum also spoke against the change stating if it changed hands again and reverted 
back to residential; it would look like commercial with the number of parking spaces. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to close the public 
hearing. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 4-0 vote.  
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Jones to approve APPLICATION 
# SE 16-02-01: Brason Investments, LLC requests a Special Exception for .38 acres of property 
located at 101 Hawthorne Road to utilize the existing single-family residence as an office (Tax 
Parcel # MS74 000085 000) with staff recommendations. Councilman Jones, Yawn and Chance 
voted in favor of the motion. Councilman Boyum voted against the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-1 vote.  
 
 
 



 
 

Consideration of a Motion to approve RESOLUTION 2016-18: A Resolution authorizing 
the waiver of any payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) by the Statesboro Housing Authority to 
the City of Statesboro for the 2015 tax year in the amount of $21,337.33. 
 
Bobby Joe Cason stated the waiver of taxes would allow the Housing Authority to use the money 
for upkeep and maintenance. 
 
Councilman Yawn made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to approve RESOLUTION 
2016-18: A Resolution authorizing the waiver of any payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) by the 
Statesboro Housing Authority to the City of Statesboro for the 2015 tax year in the amount of 
$21,337.33. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The 
motion carried by a 4-0 vote.  
 
Consideration of a motion to approve the allocation of funding and purchase of 55 Watch 
Guard Vista Body Worn Cameras, software and antennas.  The amount not to exceed 
$80,205.00.  The funding coming from FY2016 SPLOST and Seized Funds.  Watch Guard 
is the Sole Source Provider for these body worn cameras and software.  They are 
compatible with existing and future in car systems utilized by SPD.     
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to approve the allocation 
of funding and purchase of 55 Watch Guard Vista Body Worn Cameras, software and antennas.  
The amount not to exceed $80,205.00.  The funding coming from FY2016 SPLOST and Seized 
Funds.  Watch Guard is the Sole Source Provider for these body worn cameras and software.  
They are compatible with existing and future in car systems utilized by SPD. Councilman 
Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote.  
 
Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to provide general liability insurance, per 
negotiated terms, for a 15 month coverage period to Travelers in the amount of 
$570,284.00. This coverage will commence in May of 2016 and end in August of 2017. This 
will bring the general liability policy in alignment with the workers compensation 
insurance policy in an effort to market them together as one package in the future. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to award a contract to 
provide general liability insurance, per negotiated terms, for a 15 month coverage period to 
Travelers in the amount of $570,284.00. This coverage will commence in May of 2016 and end 
in August of 2017. This will bring the general liability policy in alignment with the workers 
compensation insurance policy in an effort to market them together as one package in the future. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. The contract will run from May 1st, 2016 thru August 1st, 2017. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to provide property and equipment 
insurance coverage for the City of Statesboro Fire Department to VFIS in the amount of 
$39,204.00. This covers only the Fire Department property and equipment as all other 
insurance coverage will remain under the Travelers policy. VFIS specializes in Fire 
Department property and equipment coverage as they provide current value replacement 
rates as well as specialized training programs. 
 



 
 

Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to award a contract to 
provide property and equipment insurance coverage for the City of Statesboro Fire Department 
to VFIS in the amount of $39,204.00. This covers only the Fire Department property and 
equipment as all other insurance coverage will remain under the Travelers policy. VFIS 
specializes in Fire Department property and equipment coverage as they provide current value 
replacement rates as well as specialized training programs. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn 
and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. The contract will run 
from May 1st, 2016 thru May 1st, 2017. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the "Statesboro Police Department Towing Rotation 
Agreement" template for use by the Statesboro Police Department to regulate Towing 
companies performing towing services at the request of the Statesboro Police Department. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to approve the "Statesboro 
Police Department Towing Rotation Agreement" template for use by the Statesboro Police 
Department to regulate Towing companies performing towing services at the request of the 
Statesboro Police Department. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of 
the motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. The agreement will run from June 1st, 2016 thru 
June 30th, 2017. 
 
Other Business from City Council 
 
Mayor Moore announced the next Council Meeting would be held at Statesboro High School on 
May 3rd, 2016 at 9:00 am. 
 
City Managers Comments 

A) Chief of Police search 
 
Deputy City Manager Robert Cheshire stated the Budget Retreat would be held on Friday April 
22, 2016 at 8:30 am. in the chambers at City Hall. 
 
He congratulated Planning and Development Director Mandi Cody for her move to become the 
new City Manager of Metter Georgia. There will be a reception for her on April 29th from 2-4 
pm in the chambers at City Hall. 
 
Mr. Cheshire also updated Council on the continued search for a new City Manager. He stated 
the application deadline would be May 30th, 2016. 
 
Public Comments (General) None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters”   

in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 
 
At 7:00 pm, Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to enter into 
Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters”   in accordance with O.C.G.A.§50-14-3 (2012) 
with a 5 minute break. Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the 
motion. The motion carried by a 4-0 vote. 



 
 

At 7:35 pm, Mayor Moore called the regular meeting back to order with no action being taken. 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Boyum to exit Executive Session. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Yawn to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Boyum, Jones, Yawn and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried 
by a 4-0 vote. 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:36 pm. 
 
 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Budget Retreat Minutes 

April 21, 2016 

 
A City Council Budget Retreat was held on April 02, 2015 at 9:00 am in the City Hall Council 
Chambers at 50 East Main St. Statesboro, Georgia.  Present was Mayor Jan Moore, 
Councilmembers: Phil Boyum, John Riggs, Sam Lee Jones, Jeff Yawn and Travis Chance. Also 
present was Deputy City Manager Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling, City Attorney Alvin 
Leaphart.   
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Moore.   
 
 Department Heads present were:  
Director of Water/Wastewater Van Collins, Interim Police Chief Rob Bryan, Fire Chief Tim 
Grams, Gas Superintendent Steve Hotchkiss, Interim City Engineer Jason Boyles, Director of 
Human Resource Jeff Grant, Director of the Department of Central Services Darren Prather and 
Finance Director Cindy West. 
 
Also present were other City employees. 
 
The meeting consisted of the department heads giving an overview of their budget for FY 2017 
which included their CIP Projects, 2015 highlights and budget assumptions.  They also updated 
Council on projects and programs that were ongoing or completed. 
 
DSDA Director Allen, Muldrew, Board President of SCVB Barry Turner and Executive Director 
of the Arts Council Tim Chapman updated Council on their accomplishments and goals. 
 
One topic of discussion was the 1cent hotel motel increase. Mr. Turner stated he understood that 
after the $500,000.00 was repaid to the City for the GSU Sports Complex; the penny would then 
go back to be divided between the SCVB, Arts Council and DSDA. There was no final decision 
made on this topic. 
 
There was no action taken at this meeting. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:30 p.m. 
 
 
 



Statesboro Fire Department 
Proudly serving the City of Statesboro and 

surrounding communities since 1905! 
 

   

24 West Grady Street | Statesboro, GA 30458 
Phone: (912) 764-3473 | Fax: (912) 681-7205 

 

Timothy E. Grams 
Fire Chief 

Jan J. Moore 
Mayor 

4-27-2016 
 
To: Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
 
CC: Sue Starling, City Clerk 
 
From: Timothy E. Grams, Fire Chief 
 
Ref: Easement for Construction, Operation and Maintenance with Georgia Power. 
 
Mr. Cheshire, 
 
As you are aware the Fire Department is nearing completion of the training tower project out at the Public Safety 
Training Center on 301 North.  Georgia Power is the service provider for this location and is requiring an 
easement for the installation and maintenance of an underground distribution line which will provide power to the 
training tower.  I have attached a copy of the easement as well as a diagram showing the location of this proposed 
distribution line. 
 
The Fire Department has had Alvin review the easement and all of the changes he recommended have been made.  
This property is jointly owned by the City of Statesboro and Bulloch County, and therefore requires authorization 
from both entities.  We have contacted Bulloch County regarding this matter and they have not expressed any 
concerns or objections to the easement. 
 
Please let me know if there are any questions or concerns. 
 
Thank you,        



undergr_nb Page 1 of 2 

 

Name of Line STATESBORO FIRE DEPARTMENT (BULLOCH COUNTY) 

No 16861  DISTRIBUTION LINE 

Parcel No  001 Account No 69596-VBS-0-E02416-0-GP310-30000000 

Letter File 9-14031 Deed File 23068 Map File N/A 

 

State of Georgia UNDERGROUND EASEMENT 
Bulloch County  

 

 Received of Georgia Power Company, hereinafter called the Company, the sum of 
Ten and 00/100 ****************************************************************** Dollars 

$  10.00 and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency whereof is hereby acknowledged, in exchange for which the undersigned 

City of Statesboro and Bulloch County  

whose Post Office Address is   

P.O. Box 347, Statesboro, GA  30458 

does  hereby  grant and  convey to said  Company,  its  successors and assigns,  

the right, privilege and  easement to go in, upon along, across, under, and  

through that tract of land owned by the undersigned at  

Holland Industrial Blvd., Statesboro, GA  30458 

(address of property) in the 1209th GMD (Georgia Militia District) of 

BULLOCH County, Georgia .  

 
 

Said lands being more particularly described on a plat marked  

“Exhibit A” and attached hereto and made a part hereof, 
 

together with  the right to construct,  operate  and  maintain continuously 

upon and under said land, its lines for transmitting electric  current  with 

wires, transformers,  service  pedestals, manholes,  conduits,  cables, and  

other necessary apparatus, fixtures, appliances of any other company, or 

person; together with the right to assign this easement in whole or in part; 

together with the right at all times to enter upon  said premises for the 

purpose of inspecting said lines, making repairs, renewals, alterations and 

extensions thereon, thereunder, thereto or therefrom; together with the right 

to cut away and keep clear  of said  underground lines, transformers,  fixtures 

and appliances, all trees and other obstructions that may now or hereafter in 

any way interfere or be likely to interfere with the proper operation of said 

underground lines, transformers, fixtures and appliances, also the right of 

ingress and egress over said land from said lines. The rights herein granted 

include all the necessary rights for Company and its assigns to install and 

maintain electrical lines and communication facilities to existing and future 

structure(s) under the easement terms herein provided, on the property of the 



 

 

 

 

Parcel  001  Name of Line STATESBORO FIRE DEPARTMENT (BULLOCH COUNTY) 

 

 

undergr_nb Page 2 of 2 

undersigned. Any timber cut on said land by and for said Company shall remain 

the property of the owner of said timber. 

 

The rights herein include and embrace the right to clear and keep clear all 

trees and other obstructions located within ten (10') feet of the 

underground distribution line. 

 

Said Company shall not be liable for or bound by any statement or understanding 

not herein expressed. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned ha___ hereunto set ________ hand___  and 

seal, this ___________ day of _____________________, ________. 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed, sealed and delivered 

in the presence of:  

 

 
 

Witness 

 

 

 

Notary Public 

 

 

 

 

 
City of Statesboro and Bulloch County 

 

 

 

By:  (SEAL) 

Name:  

Title:  

 

Attest:  (SEAL) 

Name:  

Title:  

  

 

 

 

 



Exhibit “A” 

STATESBORO FIRE DEPARTMENT 

(BULLOCH COUNTY)

DISTRIBUTION LINE

LAC # 16861

Pole Location(s): 1& 2 
Exhibit Prepared on 4/18/2016

Land Department

Parcel 001

DRAWING NOT TO SCALE

C
it
y 
o
f 
S
ta
te
sb
o
ro
 &
 B
u
llo
ch
 C
o
u
n
ty

(H
ig
h
w
ay
 3
01
 N
o
rt
h
)

T
ax
 P
ar
ce
l #
 M
S
79
00
00
07
A
00
0

Proposed Underground Line  































































 

Central Services 

 

Memo 
 
 
TO:  Robert Cheshire, Deputy City Manager 
  
FROM: Darren Prather, Central Services Director 
 
DATE: 4-26-16 
Re:  Recommendation— Bid Award/Major Street Repairs 
 
 
The City of Statesboro recently issued an invitation to bid on major street repairs for Niver Road, 
Lanier Drive, Banks Circle and Braswell Street. These repairs involve removal of existing asphalt 
in repair areas, removal/replacement of unsuitable materials and repaving. The areas of repair are 
“spot areas” and do not require repaving of the complete road. This project was funded in the 
amount of $85,000.00 and represents CIP number ENG-STS-30. Contractors were requested to 
provide a unit-price based bid total for this project and that total is represented in the following 
bids.  
 

Vendor    Total Bid 
 

1. Ellis Wood Contracting    $97,660.00 
2. Sikes Brothers    $107,900.00 

 
Since the budget for this project is $85,000.00, we recommend the bid award be made to Ellis 
Wood Contracting in the amount of $85,000.00 as they submitted the lowest responsive sealed 
bid of $97,660.00. The unit pricing contained in this sealed bid will be used to apply to the areas 
in most need of repair and to not exceed the budgeted $85,000.00 for this project.  


	05-03-2016 Council Agenda
	04-19-2016 Council minutes
	04-21-2016 Budget Retreat  minutes
	05-2016 Memo for GA Power easement - 5-3-2016 Council Agenda
	05-2016 Statesboro Fire Department E
	05-2016 Statesboro Fire Department
	05-2016 BVT ENTERPRISES09876320160428135933
	05-2016 Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement (2)
	05-2016 Sensus meters and transmitters
	05-2016 Sole Source  Burnett Cal-Flo System
	05-2016 Memo--Major St Repairs

